
Request for Proposals:  Questions and Answers 
On October 28, the Alliance posted two RFPs for original research focused on older adult 
and unsheltered homelessness.  We have since we received some clarification questions 
from potential applicants.  Those questions and the associated responses are included 
in this document.  As the Alliance receives additional questions, this document will be 
updated. 

General 

The first two bullets on page 1 for the mixed methods approach both discuss analyzing 
data and I’m wondering if this means primary data or secondary data. 

Response:  Projects can analyze primary data, secondary data, or both types of data.  
Whatever the type, the data should enhance our understanding of the effectiveness of 
the intervention. 

In the RFP it states that “Researchers will be expected to work with the Alliance to 
publish their findings and share them with the Alliance’s audience.”  Can you be more 
specific about what is meant by “publish findings?”  Would this need to be published in 
a peer-reviewed journal, published as a white paper, etc.?  Would published findings be 
part of the “Expected Results and Policy Impacts” section of the proposal?  Also, would 
we be expected to present these results to the Alliance’s audience, and does this need to 
be included in the budget? 

Response:  At a minimum, the researchers should author findings that can be published 
on the Alliance’s website.  However, we anticipate that other opportunities to publish 
the findings may arise, leading to further discussions between the researcher(s) and the 
Alliance.  You may include anticipated efforts to publish and publicize the findings in 
the “Expected Results and Policy Implications” and budget justification sections of your 
proposal.  Efforts to publish and publicize findings will likely vary according the subject 
matter of the research, the researchers, and the strategic goals the Alliance develops 
around the chosen projects.  Thus, we anticipate that many details will be discussed and 
negotiated amongst the parties as a part of the contracting process. 

We have expert consultants on our project.  Should they provide letter of support or do 
you want their CVs instead? 

Response:  Rather than letters of support, it would be helpful to have a CV/resume for 
each contributor to the project. 



Does the timeline need to be included in the research design (3-pages) or can it be 
separate?  

Response:  The timeline can be its own section (separate from the Research Design section). 

Is it okay for a researcher to have an MD degree rather than a PhD? 

Response:  Researchers with MD degrees are encouraged to apply.  The original versions 
of the RFPs included a PhD requirement.  They have since been updated to allow for 
PhD candidates and researchers who have obtained other types of post-baccalaureate 
degrees. 

Can you clarify what the indirect rate allowed is for these proposals?  

Response:  We anticipate that indirect costs will be considered within the context of the 
project proposal.   

Housing Solutions for Older Adults Experiencing Homelessness RFP 

The first paragraph states “However, little is known about models that effectively 
house the population (using limited government resources) or what types of services 
they provide.”  Does this mean we should only focus on programs that use limited 
government resources?

Response:  The costs of an intervention should figure into the decision to study it.  For 
illustrative purposes, I will offer an extreme example.  Suppose a program decided that 
it wanted to purchase a two-bedroom beachfront condo for each person experiencing 
homelessness (because ocean sounds are calming and benefit one’s mental health) while also 
providing 24/7 in-home nursing care.  Such an intervention would likely end homelessness 
for those chosen for the program.  However, studying that model would not prove useful.  
First, government program budgets would likely not extend far enough to provide such an 
intervention to everyone experiencing homelessness.  Second, costs and logistics (there are 
no beaches in Tulsa) would likely prevent other communities from replicating the model.  And 
third, this likely wouldn’t be a politically viable solution—politicians won’t win elections by 
announcing beachfront properties as their solution to homelessness.

We are simply urging people to consider such factors.  Let’s say Model A and Model B 
seem equally promising.  However, Model A is more cost-effective and easier to replicate 
than Model B.  We would be more interested in studying Model A. 

We recognize that some assessments will be imperfect.  You likely will be making them 
without the benefit of an in-depth study of the landscape of all possible options.  However, 
it would be helpful if the models you choose and your proposals evidence some level of 
thoughtfulness about cost-effectiveness and the related ease of replication.  At a minimum, 
you should not select interventions that are at some type of extreme in terms of costs.



In the RFP it states “Proposed research projects should focus on models that 
successfully serve most older adults experiencing homelessness.  Does NAEH have a 
definition of success or is this for us to define? 

Response:  The Alliance is focused on ending homelessness.  For our organization, 
“success” is getting people housed and ensuring that obtained housing is stable/
permanent (i.e., clients don’t return to homelessness).  Importantly, ensuring stable 
housing may be depend on other factors—for example, physical accessibility of property 
or assessed effectiveness aging in place services.   

Additional factors are of interest (e.g. improved sense of well-being and others you may 
identify).  But those factors should coincide with successfully housing people.   

We are thinking of a number of ways to measure success for homeless senior housing 
models.  As we evaluate different tools we wanted to ask if you use any standard tools 
to measure success across your programs.  For example, do you use a standard tool to 
measure quality of life or loneliness. 

Response:  Evaluating senior housing models is a new area of work for the Alliance.  
Thus, we don’t have a standard set of tools for this work.  If necessary, we have partners 
who focus on older adult issues who can contribute to the development of projects. 

Strategies for Reducing Unsheltered Homelessness Research Project RFP 

Forthcoming . . . 
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